NOTICE OF PARISH COUNCIL MEETING

Date: Wednesday 20th September, 2023

Time: 7:30p.m.

Venue: Great Warford Baptist Chapel, Merrymans Lane, Great Warford

E.M.Maddock

Dr. E. M. Maddock PSLCC, Clerk & Responsible Financial Officer.

Dated 14th September, 2023

In order to keep councillors and other members of the public safe, please do not attend the meeting if you are feeling unwell for any reason or if you have been in contact with anyone who has Covid, flu or Covid/flu symptoms.

All attendees will be expected to respect social distancing preferences of other attendees.

AGENDA

To Members of Great Warford Parish Council,

You are hereby summoned to attend the Parish Council Meeting, as shown above, to consider and determine the following business:

- 1. Apologies for absence
- 2. Declarations of Interest
 - (a) To receive Declarations of Interest in any items on the agenda.
- 3. Presentation from 20s Plenty Campaign
- 4. Minutes
 - (a) To approve the Minutes of the Parish Council meeting held 19th July, 2023 as a correct record.
- **5. Public Forum for Questions** To receive questions from members of the public.
- 6. Reports from External Organisations
 - (a) Cheshire East Ward Member: Cllr. H. Moss To receive a report on items of interest to the Parish Council.
 - (b) To receive a report on matters of interest / concern within the Parish from the Mobberley Ward Policing Team.

7. Finance

- (a) To receive an update relating to the 2022/23 external audit.
- (b) To receive a report regarding Parish Council banking provisions.
- (c) To receive and consider the Financial Statement 2023/24 as at 20th September, 2023. (Appendix A)
- (d) To note receipts as listed at Appendix B.
- (e) To approve the payments listed at Appendix C.
- (f) To receive notice of revised electricity tariff and information relating to alternative

E.M.M - 14/09/23 1 of 21

- supply rates.
- (g) To approve the signing of new direct debit mandates in respect of electricity accounts held by the Parish Council.

8. Planning

- (a) To receive and note latest planning decisions issued by Cheshire East Council in respect of development within the Parish and updates on undecided applications.
 (Appendix D)
- (b) To consider the following planning applications:
 - i. 23/3042M Penley Cottage, Chelford Road, Great Warford. SK9 7TL Certificate of lawful proposed development for the erection of single storey side extensions, erection of rear two storey extension, erection of porch, erection of dormer to rear roof slope and erection of two garden rooms.
 - 23/3110M Out A Bounds, Warford Lane, Great Warford. WA16 7AY Installation of new ground mounted solar PV panels.
 - 23/3120M Hawthorn Farm, Edge View Lane, Alderley Edge. SK9 7SU Construction of ménage.
 - iv. 23/3291M Arosfa, Merrymans Lane, Great Warford. SK9 7TP Demolition of part of the existing rear single storey roof over the Kitchen / Dining area. Construction of new 1st floor rear extension (within the existing building footprint) with white render finish, to create a new Bedroom accommodation. New larger rooflight to be installed to the remaining single storey rear roof. General internal re-modelling. Construction of new open oak porch to the front of the property. 2 no. new windows to existing walls to side elevation (upper level to rear to be opaque / frosted). The existing external walls are to be rendered (white finish). The existing window frames are to be painted grey. The rear french doors / fixed side lights to the rear are to be replaced with bi-fold doors. Existing Kitchen window to rear to be enlarged.
 - v. Any applications received following issue of Agenda may be included for discussion if required.

9. Highway Maintenance and Enhancements

- (a) To receive updates relating to highway maintenance issues reported to Cheshire East Council following recent surveys and reports.
- (b) To receive further highway maintenance matters for attention from Members.
- (c) To receive update relating to the possible use of community infrastructure levy funds for the provision of vehicle activated speed signs on Merrymans Lane.

10. Correspondence

- (a) To consider specific correspondence received by the Parish Council since the date of the last ordinary meeting and to determine such action as Members consider appropriate thereto:
 - Cheshire East Council Cheshire East Libraries Service Review: Final proposals.
 - [Link to information: https://moderngov.cheshireeast.gov.uk/ecminutes/mgAi.aspx?
 ID=67455#mgDocuments]
 - ii. Cheshire East Council Garden waste subscription service.

 [Link to information: https://www.cheshireeast.gov.uk/waste_and_recycling/bins/garden-bin-subscription.aspx]

E.M.M - 14/09/23 2 of 21

- iii. NALC Levelling-up and Regeneration Bill: consultation on implementation of plan-making reforms.
 - [Link to information: https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/plan-making-reforms-consultation-on-implementation-on-implementation-of-plan-making-reforms]
- iv. Cheshire East Council Consultation on Housing Allocations Policy. [Link to information: https://surveys.cheshireeast.gov.uk/s/AllocationsPolicy23/]
- v. Cheshire East Council Consultation on Final Draft Sustainable Drainage Systems SPD.
 - [Link to information: https://cheshireeast-consult.objective.co.uk/kse/event/37614]
- vi. Cheshire East Council Consultation on FlexiLink: Service Proposals. [Link to information: https://surveys.cheshireeast.gov.uk/s/FlexiLink/]
- vii. Cheshire East Council Consultation on proposed changes to car parking charges.
- viii. Cheshire East Council Consultation on proposed changes to street lighting.
- ix. ChALC Notice of Annual Meeting on 12th October, 2023 at Helsby Community Sports Club.
- x. Congleton Town Council Congleton Climate Festival and Green Fayre on 30th September, 2023.
 [Link to information: https://www.congletonpartnership.co.uk/congleton-climate-festival/
 #events22]
- xi. ChALC Updated guidance on D-Day anniversary events in June 2024. [Link to information: www.d-day80beacons.co.uk]
- xii. Knutsford Community First Responder Trust Invitation for a new volunteer to support regular defibrillator checking in Chelford, Great Warford and Over Peover.
- xiii. Police & Crime Commissioner Commissioner's Community Action Fund reopens. [Link to information: https://www.cheshire-pcc.gov.uk/what-the-commissioner-does/community-funding/community-action-fund/]
- xiv. Police & Crime Commissioner Purchase of new speed monitoring devices for each of Cheshire's nine policing teams.

 [Information: Each of the nine local units will have a device at its disposal which will enable the police to monitor more local roads and build data to support enforcement action. The devices use radar to monitor the speed and volume of passing traffic over the course of a week. Once data is collected, the local team will be able to deploy resources more effectively and ensure appropriate community support.]

11. Community matters

- (a) To receive an update relating to community speed watch.
- (b) To receive a report from the Knutsford Area Parishes Forum held 17th August, 2023.
- (c) To consider arrangements for the Christmas tree lights 2023.

12. Code of Conduct

- (a) To adopt the updated Code of Conduct. (Appendix E)
- (b) To receive an update relating to Registration of Member Interests.
- 13. Matters for inclusion on next/future meeting agenda
- **14.** Date of next meeting Wednesday 15th November, 2023.

E.M.M - 14/09/23 3 of 21

To consider passing a resolution under Section 1(2) of the Public Bodies (Admission to Meetings) Act 1960 to exclude the public and press from the meeting for the following item of business on the grounds that it could involve the likely disclosure of exempt information.

15. Matters for consideration including those transferred from above items (as required)

E.M.Maddock

Dr. E. M. Maddock PSLCC, Clerk & Responsible Financial Officer. Dated 14th September, 2023

For further information and copy agenda please contact:

Tel: 01477 571444 Email: clerk.greatwarfordpc@gmail.com

E.M.M - 14/09/23 4 of 21

APPENDIX A

Financial Statement – 2023/24 as at 20 th September, 2023					
Actual 2022/23	Details	2023/24 Budget	Actual to Jul. 23	Agenda Sep. 23	Budget Balance
£		£	£	£	£
	Receipts				
9,196.00	Precept	10,480.00	5,240.00	5,240.00	0.00
0.00	Balances	2,737.00	0.00		0.00
10.57	Investment interest	0.00	10.12		0.00
0.00	Sale of assets	0.00	0.00		0.00
0.00	Grants, donations & refunds	0.00	0.00		0.00
1,723.51	Community Infrastructure Levy	0.00	484.66		0.00
514.79	VAT refund		154.18		105.64
11,444.87	Total receipts	13,217.00	5,888.96	5,240.00	105.64
	Payments				
3,965.05	Salary (Clerk)	4,166.00	650.86	1,301.72	2,213.42
0.00	National Insurance (Employer)	0.00	0.00		0.00
275.00	Allowances (Clerk)	275.00	0.00		275.00
171.60	Administration	325.00	0.00	3.49	321.51
0.00	Chairman/Member allowances	0.00	0.00		0.00
180.00	Audit fees (internal & external)	200.00	200.00		0.00
264.00	Insurance	300.00	300.00		0.00
23.98	Website	20.00	0.00		20.00
190.60	Street lighting electric	530.00	48.14	23.76	458.10
0.00	Training	210.00	0.00		210.00
313.12	Subscriptions/affiliation fees	386.00	263.29	20.00	102.71
140.00	Room hire	230.00	40.00	40.00	150.00
1.55	Christmas lighting	250.00	0.00	125.00	125.00
420.00	Parish Maintenance	600.00	100.00		500.00
68.29	Asset purchase	600.00	0.00		600.00
0.00	Asset maintenance	3,175.00	0.00		3,175.00
0.00	Newsletter	750.00	0.00	211.20	538.80
350.00	s.137 payments	700.00	0.00		700.00
0.00	Contingency	500.00	0.00		500.00
154.18	VAT		62.21	43.43	
6,517.37	Total payments	13,217.00	1,664.50	1,768.60	9,889.54

Cash/Bank reconciliation	01/04/23	19/07/23	20/09/23	31/03/24
Balance B/Fwd	21,793.04	21,793.04	26,017.50	29,488.90
Add total receipts	13,217.00	5,888.96	5,240.00	105.64
Less total payments	13,217.00	1,664.50	1,768.60	9,889.54
Balance C/Fwd	21,793.04	26,017.50	29,488.90	19,705.00
Cumulative balances	Balance	Balance	Balance	Balance
	01/04/23	19/07/23	20/09/23	31/03/24
General funds	12,802.53	17,026.99	20,013.73	10,229.83
Earmarked reserves	8,990.51	8,990.51	9,475.17	9,475.17
	21,793.04	26,017.50	29,488.90	19,705.00

E.M.M - 14/09/23 5 of 21

Cash/Bank Reconciliation as at 20th September 2023

<u>Cash</u>				
Balance brought forward 01/04/23				
Current Account		16,939.05		
Business Reserve Account	_	4,853.99		
		21,793.04		
Plus receipts		11,128.96		
Less payments		3,433.10		
Balance carried forward 20/09/23:	_	29,488.90		
	=	-		
<u>Bank</u>				
Business Premium Account (Barclay	-	4,864.11		03/07/23
Add receipts/transfer since above state				
_	0.00			
Loca unpresented chagues		0.00		
Less unpresented cheques	0.00			
_	0.00	0.00		
	-	0.00	4,864.11	20/09/23
			1,001.11	20/03/20
Community Account (Barclays)		21,153.39		07/08/23
Add receipts/transfer since above state	ement			
_	0.00			
		0.00		
Less unpresented cheques				
Approved	0.00			
For approval _	0.00	0.00		
	-	0.00	21,153.39	20/00/22
			21,133.39	20/09/23
Current Account (NatWest)		5,240.00		13/09/23
Add receipts/transfer since above state	ement	5,= 15155		20,00,20
·	0.00			
		0.00		
Less unpresented cheques				
For approval_	1,768.60			
	_	-1,768.60		
			3,471.40	20/09/23
Total bank balances 20/09/23		_	29,488.90	
i otai balik balahtes 20/09/23		=	29,488.90	

APPENDIX B

Receipts

Cheshire East Borough Council £5,240.00 Precept 2023/24 (50%)

E.M.M - 14/09/23 6 of 21

APPENDIX C

Payments for approval

Cheque No 000001	E. M. Maddock	£777.79	Salary: June-July 2023 & expenses
Cheque No 000001	E. M. Maddock	£533.21	Salary: AugSept. 2023 & expenses
			(inc. electricity charges – Aug.2023)
Cheque No 000002	H. M. Revenue & Customs	£130.00	Employee income tax: JunJul. 23
Cheque No 000002	H. M. Revenue & Customs	£130.00	Employee income tax: AugSep. 23
Cheque No 000003	Great Warford Baptist Chapel	£20.00	Room hire (19/07/23)
Cheque No 000003	Great Warford Baptist Chapel	£20.00	Room hire (20/09/23)
Cheque No 000004	K. Hall & Sons	£125.00	Christmas lighting installation 2022
Cheque No 000005	Cheshire Community Action	£20.00	Membership fee 2023/24
Direct Debit	npower	£12.60	Electricity charges – July 2023

Note: Barclays cheques 100627 – 100631 to be cancelled and re-issued as above.

APPENDIX D

Outstanding planning applications & recent planning decisions

20/1503M Cheshire Health Club and Spa, Warford Park, Faulkners Lane, Great Warford.

Construction of single storey extension with 2 roof lanterns, new entrance, replacement timber wall cladding, proposed new replacement windows, proposed new window openings and windows, construction of ventilation / air conditioning systems to flat roof with screening, insertion of roof skylights, insertion of new door for maintenance and cleaning access on existing flat roof.

DECISION STATUS - Undecided

21/3027M Warford Hall, Warford Hall Drive, Great Warford. SK9 7TP

Change of use - Convert existing stables and barns from ancillary office and guest accommodation to create 6 no. residential dwellings, together with single storey extension to existing former stables building (same footprint as previous building on the site) and external alterations to existing detached Oak framed barn in association with its conversion to a dwelling.

DECISION STATUS - Undecided

21/5394M Carlisle House, Knutsford Road, Knolls Green, Mobberley. WA16 7BA

Construction of a dwelling on land south of Carlisle House with associated access and landscaping.

andscaping.

DECISION STATUS - Refused (15/08/23)

21/5713M Croft Cottage, Chelford Road, Great Warford. SK9 7TL

Certificate of lawful existing use of land to the rear of Croft Cottage as garden.

DECISION STATUS – Undecided

22/3845M Brookfield Farm, Ancoats Lane, Great Warford.

Erection of two-storey side extension, relocation of garage door and regularisation of

an existing porch and conservatory.

DECISION STATUS - Refused (24/02/23); Appeal awaiting decision.

23/0389M Cheshire Health Club and Spa, Warford Park, Faulkners Lane, Great Warford, WA16

7RN

Widening of private access road and new padel court.

DECISION STATUS – Undecided [Amended application 30/06/23]

E.M.M - 14/09/23 7 of 21

23/0999M Blossom House, Chelford Road, Great Warford. SK9 7TL

Alterations and extensions including construction of two single-storey side extensions, two-storey rear extension, detached garage, basement, alterations to vehicular access and associated landscaping.

DECISION STATUS - Undecided

23/1252M Kelsall House Farm, Paddock Hill, Great Warford, WA16 7DJ

To take down the existing single storey elements to the west elevation and construct a

new single storey side extension with raised patio. DECISION STATUS – Undecided

23/1807D Twin Oak, Merrymans Lane, Great Warford.

Discharge of condition 13 on approved application: 21/5696M: Demolition of existing stable block and ancillary buildings to be replaced with proposed detached single storey family dwelling.

DECISION STATUS - Approved (20/07/23)

23/1925M Pownall Barns, Warford Lane, Great Warford.

Rear dormer extension to increase the size of the existing dormer and provide more

storage space to the two rear rooms.

DECISION STATUS – Approved with conditions (19/07/23)

23/2238D Heathgate, Merrymans Lane, Great Warford. SK9 7TP

Discharge of conditions 4, 5, 7, & 8 on approved application 21/4656M –

Replacement dwelling.

DECISION STATUS - Approved (20/07/23)

23/2247M Constantia, Paddock Hill, Mobberley. WA16 7DJ

Creation of a new dwelling and associated landscaping works, including demolition

of a single existing dwelling.

DECISION STATUS – Undecided [Additional information submitted 15/08/23]

23/2347M Home Farm, Faulkners Lane, Mobberley. WA16 7AN

Agricultural workers dwelling with detached garage and associated development.

DECISION STATUS - Undecided

23/2400M 5 Coniston Close, Great Warford. SK9 7WD

Proposed single storey rear extension to form snug room off kitchen and large utility / boot room. Demolition of existing conservatory. Extension will extend 4.5m from

rear wall with a maximum height of 3.05m and an eaves height of 2.78m.

DECISION STATUS – Approved with conditions (25/08/23)

23/2588M Land off Merrymans Lane, Great Warford.

New domestic stable.

DECISION STATUS – Undecided

E.M.M - 14/09/23 8 of 21

APPENDIX E

Code of Conduct

Cheshire East Council has adopted the revised Code of Conduct as recommended by the Local Government Association. Town and Parish Councils within the Borough are encouraged to adopt this Code in order to to provide consistency in expected standards of Councillors and to assist when Code of Conduct complaints are lodged with the Monitoring Officer.

The adopted Cheshire East Council Code of Conduct is as follows:

Cheshire East Council - Councillor Code of Conduct

Cheshire East Council has adopted this Code of Conduct to promote and maintain high standards of conduct and underpin public confidence in the Authority and its Councillors and coopted Members (referred to collectively in this Code as "Councillors").

- All Town and Parish Councils that are within the Borough boundary have been invited to adopt this Code. It is acknowledged that town and parish councils that choose to adopt this Code may wish to amend its provisions to reflect local circumstances and preferences.
- 2. It is important that as Councillors we can be held accountable, and all adopt the behaviours and responsibilities associated with the role. Conduct as an individual Councillor affects the reputation of all Councillors. The Council wants the role of Councillor to be one that people aspire to. The Council also wants individuals from a range of backgrounds and circumstances to be putting themselves forward to become Councillors.
- 3. As Councillors, we represent local residents, work to develop better services and deliver local change. The public have high expectations of us and entrust us to represent our local area, taking decisions fairly, openly, and transparently. We have both an individual and collective responsibility to meet these expectations by maintaining high standards and demonstrating good conduct, and by challenging behaviour which falls below expectations.
- 4. Importantly, we should be able to undertake our role as a Councillor without being intimidated, abused, bullied, or threatened by anyone, including the general public.
- 5. This Code has been designed to protect our democratic role, encourage good conduct and safeguard the public's trust in local government.

Introduction

This Councillor Code of Conduct has been adopted under the Localism Act 2011 and is supported by a process that will be followed if a complaint is made. A complaint should be made to the Monitoring Officer with sufficient information to substantiate it. The form may be found on the Cheshire East Council website.

Support for Town and Parish Councils may be accessed through their membership of the Cheshire Association of Local Councils (ChALC) or the National Association of Local Councils (NALC).

E.M.M - 14/09/23 9 of 21

Guidance that may assist Councillors in interpreting and understanding aspects of the code can be found here; https://www.local.gov.uk/publications/guidance-local-government-association-model-councillor-code-conduct

Definitions

For the purposes of this Code of Conduct, a "Councillor" means an elected Councillor or coopted Member of Cheshire East Council or of one of the Town and Parish Councils that have adopted this Code of Conduct

A "co-opted member" is defined in the Localism Act 2011 Section 27(4) as "a person who is not a member of the authority but who:

- a) is a member of any committee or sub-committee of the authority, or;
- b) is a member of, and represents the authority on, any joint committee or joint subcommittee of the authority;
 - and who is entitled to vote on any question that falls to be decided at any meeting of that committee or sub-committee".

For the purposes of this Code of Conduct, "local authority" includes Cheshire East Council and / or one of the parish councils, town councils within the Borough.

Purpose of the Code of Conduct

The purpose of this Code of Conduct is to assist you, as a Councillor, in modelling the behaviour that is expected of you, to provide a personal check and balance, and to set out the type of conduct that could lead to action being taken against you. It is also to protect you, the public, fellow Councillors, local authority officers and the reputation of your Council and of local government. It sets out general principles of conduct expected of all Councillors and your specific obligations in relation to standards of conduct. The fundamental aim of the Code is to create and maintain public confidence in the role of Councillor and local government.

General principles of Councillor conduct

Everyone in public office at all levels; all who serve the public or deliver public services, including ministers, civil servants, Councillors and local authority officers; should uphold the Seven Principles of Public Life, also known as the Nolan Principles (as set out at Appendix A). The Nolan Principles are:

- 1. Selflessness:
- 2. Integrity;
- 3. Objectivity;
- 4. Accountability;
- 5. Openness;
- 6. Honesty;
- 7. Leadership.

E.M.M - 14/09/23 10 of 21

Building on these principles, the following general principles have been developed specifically for the role of Councillor.

In accordance with the public trust placed in me, on all occasions:

- I act with integrity and honesty
- · I act lawfully
- I treat all persons fairly and with respect; and
- I lead by example and act in a way that secures public confidence in the role of Councillor.

In undertaking my role:

- I impartially exercise my responsibilities in the interests of the local community
- I do not improperly seek to confer an advantage, or disadvantage, on any person
- · I avoid conflicts of interest
- I exercise reasonable care and diligence; and
- I ensure that public resources are used prudently in accordance with my local authority's requirements and in the public interest.

Application of the Code of Conduct

This Code of Conduct applies to you as soon as you sign your declaration of acceptance of the office of Councillor or attend your first meeting as a co-opted member, and it continues to apply to you until you cease to be a Councillor or Co-Opted Member.

This Code of Conduct applies to you when you are acting in your capacity as a Councillor or Co-opted Member which may include if:

- you misuse your position as a Councillor
- Your actions would give the impression to a reasonable member of the public with knowledge of all the facts that you are acting as a Councillor

The Code applies to all forms of communication and interaction, including:

- at face-to-face meetings
- at online or telephone meetings
- in written communication
- · in verbal communication
- in non-verbal communication
- in electronic and social media communication, posts, statements, and comments.

You are also expected to uphold high standards of conduct and show leadership at all times when acting as a Councillor.

Your Monitoring Officer has statutory responsibility for the implementation of the Code of Conduct, and you are encouraged to seek advice from your Monitoring Officer on any matters that may relate to the Code of Conduct. Town and parish Councillors are encouraged to seek

E.M.M - 14/09/23 11 of 21

advice from their Clerk, who may refer matters to the Monitoring Officer.

Standards of Councillor conduct

This section sets out your obligations, which are the minimum standards of conduct required of you as a Councillor. Should your conduct fall short of these standards, a complaint may be made against you, which may result in action being taken.

Guidance is included to help explain the reasons for the obligations and how they should be followed.

General Conduct

1. Respect

As a Councillor:

- 1.1 I treat other Councillors and members of the public with respect.
- 1.2 I treat local authority employees, employees and representatives of partner organisations and those volunteering for the local authority with respect and respect the role they play.

Respect means politeness and courtesy in behaviour, speech, and in the written word. Debate and having different views are all part of a healthy democracy. As a Councillor, you can express, challenge, criticise and disagree with views, ideas, opinions and policies in a robust but civil manner. You should not, however, subject individuals, groups of people or organisations to personal attack.

In your contact with the public, you should treat them politely and courteously. Rude and offensive behaviour lowers the public's expectations and confidence in Councillors.

In return, you have a right to expect respectful behaviour from others. If members of the public are being abusive, intimidatory or threatening you are entitled to stop any conversation or interaction in person or online and report them to the relevant local authority, social media provider or the police. This also applies to fellow Councillors, where action could then be taken under the Councillor Code of Conduct, and local authority employees, where concerns should be raised in line with the local authority's Member/officer protocol.

2. Bullying, harassment and discrimination

As a Councillor:

- 2.1 I do not bully any person.
- 2.2 I do not harass any person.
- 2.3 I promote equalities and do not discriminate unlawfully against any person.

The Advisory, Conciliation and Arbitration Service (ACAS) characterises bullying as offensive, intimidating, malicious or insulting behaviour, an abuse or misuse of power through means that undermine, humiliate, denigrate or injure the recipient. Bullying might be a regular pattern of behaviour or a one-off incident, happen face-to-face, on social media, in emails or phone calls, happen in the workplace or at work social events and may not always be obvious or noticed by others.

The Protection from Harassment Act 1997 defines harassment as conduct that causes alarm or distress or puts people in fear of violence and must involve such conduct on at least two

E.M.M - 14/09/23 12 of 21

occasions. It can include repeated attempts to impose unwanted communications and contact upon a person in a manner that could be expected to cause distress or fear in any reasonable person.

Because bullying and harassment can be subjective by its very nature, any complaints of such behaviour will be subject to an objective assessment of all the circumstances surrounding the allegation.

Unlawful discrimination is where someone is treated unfairly because of a protected characteristic. Protected characteristics are specific aspects of a person's identity defined by the Equality Act 2010. They are age, disability, gender reassignment, marriage and civil partnership, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation.

The Equality Act 2010 places specific duties on local authorities. Councillors have a central role to play in ensuring that equality issues are integral to the local authority's performance and strategic aims, and that there is a strong vision and public commitment to equality across public services.

3. Impartiality of officers of the council

As a Councillor:

3.1 I do not compromise, or attempt to compromise, the impartiality of anyone who works for, or on behalf of, the local authority.

Officers work for the local authority as a whole and must be politically neutral (there are no political assistants in Cheshire East). They should not be coerced or persuaded to act in a way that would undermine their neutrality. You can question officers in order to understand, for example, their reasons for proposing to act in a particular way, for having acted in a particular way, or in respect of the content of a report that they have written. However, you must not try and force them to act differently, change their advice, or alter the content of that report, if doing so would prejudice their professional integrity.

Councillors should always use the appropriate routes to raise issues and inform decision making.

4. Confidentiality and access to information

As a Councillor:

- 4.1 I do not disclose information given to me in confidence by anyone, or acquired by me which I believe, or ought reasonably to be aware, is of a confidential nature, unless:
 - a) I have received the consent of a person authorised to give it;
 - b) I am required by law to do so:
 - c) the disclosure is made to a third party for the purpose of obtaining professional legal advice provided that the third party agrees not to disclose the information to any other person; or
 - d) the disclosure is:
 - i. reasonable and in the public interest; and

E.M.M - 14/09/23 13 of 21

- ii. made in good faith and in compliance with the reasonable requirements of the access to information procedure rules; and
- iii. I have sought the views of the Monitoring Officer prior to its release.
- 4.2 I do not improperly use knowledge gained solely as a result of my role as a Councillor for the advancement of myself, my friends, my family members, my employer or my business interests.
- 4.3 I do not prevent anyone from getting information that they are entitled to by law.

Cheshire East Council must work openly and transparently, and their proceedings and printed materials are open to the public, except in certain legally defined circumstances. You should work on this basis, but there will be times when it is required by law that discussions, documents and other information relating to or held by the local authority must be treated in a confidential manner. Examples include personal data relating to individuals or information relating to ongoing negotiations.

5. Disrepute

As a Councillor:

- 5.1 I do not bring my role or Council into disrepute;
- 5.2 I am seen as a representative of Cheshire East Council or my Town or Parish Council and seek to uphold the image and reputation of the Council and will not bring my Council into disrepute.

As a Councillor, you are trusted to make decisions on behalf of your community and your actions and behaviour are subject to greater scrutiny than that of ordinary members of the public. You should be aware that your actions might have an adverse impact on you, other Councillors and/or your Council and may lower the public's confidence in you or your Council's ability to discharge your/its functions. For example, behaviour that is considered dishonest and/or deceitful can bring your local authority into disrepute.

You are able to hold the Council and fellow Councillors to account and are able to bring legitimate challenge in relation to Council functions and operation, criticise and express concern about decisions, services and processes undertaken by the Council whilst continuing to adhere to other aspects of this Code of Conduct. The Code of Conduct does not stifle political debate, or prevent Councillors from campaigning on issues of local concern.

6. Use of position

As a Councillor:

6.1 I do not use, or attempt to use, my position improperly to the advantage or disadvantage of myself or anyone else.

Your position as a Councillor of the local authority provides you with certain opportunities, responsibilities, and privileges, and you make choices all the time that will impact others.

However, you should not take advantage of these opportunities to further your own or others' private interests or to disadvantage anyone unfairly.

E.M.M-14/09/23 14 of 21

7. Use of local authority resources and facilities

As a Councillor:

- 7.1 I do not misuse council resources.
- 7.2 I will, when using the resources of the local authority or authorising their use by others:
 - a. act in accordance with the local authority's requirements; and
 - b. ensure that such resources are not used for political purposes unless that use could reasonably be regarded as likely to facilitate, or be conducive to, the discharge of the functions of the local authority or of the office to which I have been elected or appointed.

You may be provided with resources and facilities by the local authority to assist you in carrying out your duties as a Councillor.

Examples include:

- office support
- stationery
- equipment such as phones, and computers
- transport
- access and use of local authority buildings and rooms.

These are given to you to help you carry out your role as a Councillor more effectively and are not to be used for business, personal, or political gain. They should be used in accordance with the purpose for which they have been provided and the Council's own policies regarding their use.

8. Complying with the Code of Conduct

As a Councillor:

- 8.1 I undertake Code of Conduct training provided by my Council.
- 8.2 I cooperate with any Code of Conduct investigation and/or determination.
- 8.3 I do not intimidate or attempt to intimidate any person who is likely to be involved with the administration of any investigation or proceedings.
- 8.4 I comply with any sanction imposed on me following a finding that I have breached the Code of Conduct.

It is extremely important for you as a Councillor to demonstrate high standards, for you to have your actions open to scrutiny and for you not to undermine public trust in the local authority or its governance. If you do not understand or are concerned about the local authority's processes in handling a complaint you should raise this with your Monitoring Officer.

E.M.M - 14/09/23 15 of 21

Protecting your reputation and the reputation of the local authority

9. Interests

As a Councillor:

9.1 I register and disclose my interests.

Section 29 of the Localism Act 2011 requires the Monitoring Officer to establish and maintain a register of interests of Councillors of the Council this includes Town and Parishes.

You need to register your interests so that the public, council employees and fellow Councillors know which of your interests might give rise to a conflict of interest. The register is a public document that can be consulted when (or before) an issue arises. The register also protects you by allowing you to demonstrate openness and a willingness to be held accountable. You are personally responsible for deciding whether or not you should disclose an interest in a meeting, but it can be helpful for you to know early on if others think that a potential conflict might arise. It is also important that the public know about any interest that might have to be disclosed by you or other Councillors when making or taking part in decisions, so that decision making is seen by the public as open and honest. This helps to ensure that public confidence in the integrity of local governance is maintained.

You should note that failure to register or disclose a disclosable pecuniary interest as set out in **Table 1**, is a criminal offence under the Localism Act 2011.

Appendix B sets out the detailed provisions on registering and disclosing interests. If in doubt, you should always seek advice from your Monitoring Officer.

10. Gifts and hospitality

As a Councillor:

- 10.1 I do not accept gifts or hospitality, irrespective of estimated value, which could give rise to real or substantive personal gain or a reasonable suspicion of influence on my part to show favour from persons seeking to acquire, develop or do business with the local authority or from persons who may apply to the local authority for any permission, licence or other significant advantage.
- 10.2 I will only accept gifts and hospitality when on a scale appropriate to the circumstances, and where it is apparent that no cause could reasonably arise for adverse criticism about the acceptance of the gift or hospitality. Hospitality is usually acceptable when the invitation is corporate not personal.
- 10.3 I will register with the Monitoring Officer any significant gift or hospitality that I have been offered but have refused to accept.

Whatever gift or hospitality is provided to you, other than a gift or hospitality of nominal value only (such as drink, or small items of stationery), you should report the circumstances and the type of hospitality to the Monitoring Officer. Small insignificant gifts of a value of less than £50, such as pens, diaries, calendars, mouse mats or mugs, may be accepted.

In order to protect your position and the reputation of your Council, you should exercise caution in accepting any gifts or hospitality which are (or which you reasonably believe to be) offered to you because you are a Councillor. The presumption should always be not to accept significant

E.M.M - 14/09/23 16 of 21

gifts or hospitality. However, there may be times when such a refusal may be difficult if it is seen as rudeness in which case you could accept it but must ensure it is publicly registered.

Corporate gifts and/or hospitality may on occasion be offered to Councillors carrying out duties associated with a ceremonial role such as Mayor. If the gift or hospitality is offered in ceremonial capacity, it can be accepted and noted on the register for the office being held. For example, the Mayor receives a gift on behalf of the Council, the gift will be recorded in the Mayors register and retained by the Council. A gift received by the Mayor as a token of thanks for attending a function, such as flowers, will be recorded as a personal gift within the register as appropriate. Gifts of a greater value should only be accepted on the basis that the gift or hospitality is declared. Gifts or hospitality (if appropriate) accepted in a ceremonial capacity may be donated to charitable or other appropriate causes such as the Mayors Charity.

You do not need to register gifts and hospitality which are not related to your role as a Councillor, such as Christmas gifts from your friends and family. It is also important to note that it is appropriate to accept normal expenses and hospitality associated with your duties as a Member. If you are unsure, do contact the Monitoring Officer for guidance.

11. Predetermination, predisposition and bias

Issues of predetermination, predisposition and bias can arise in parallel to the provisions of the Code of Conduct, but are not part of the Code itself. For further information, please consult specific guidance available at the following links:

https://www.local.gov.uk/publications/probity-planning-advice-councillors-and-officers-making-planning-decisions

Appendices

Appendix A – The Seven Principles of Public Life

The principles are:

Selflessness

Holders of public office should act solely in terms of the public interest.

Integrity

Holders of public office must avoid placing themselves under any obligation to people or organisations that might try inappropriately to influence them in their work. They should not act or take decisions in order to gain financial or other material benefits for themselves, their family, or their friends. They must disclose and resolve any interests and relationships.

Objectivity

Holders of public office must act and take decisions impartially, fairly and on merit, using the best evidence and without discrimination or bias.

Accountability

Holders of public office are accountable to the public for their decisions and actions and must submit themselves to the scrutiny necessary to ensure this.

E.M.M - 14/09/23 17 of 21

Openness

Holders of public office should act and take decisions in an open and transparent manner. Information should not be withheld from the public unless there are clear and lawful reasons for so doing.

Honesty

Holders of public office should be truthful.

Leadership

Holders of public office should exhibit these principles in their own behaviour. They should actively promote and robustly support the principles and be willing to challenge poor behaviour wherever it occurs.

Appendix B - Registering interests

Within 28 days of becoming a Councillor or your re-election or re-appointment to office you must register with the Monitoring Officer the interests which fall within the categories set out in **Table 1 (Disclosable Pecuniary Interests)** which are as described in "The Relevant Authorities (Disclosable Pecuniary Interests) Regulations 2012". You should also register details of your other personal interests which fall within the categories set out in **Table 2 (Other Registerable Interests).**

- "Disclosable Pecuniary Interest" means an interest of yourself, or of your partner if you are aware of your partner's interest, within the descriptions set out in Table 1 below.
- "Partner" means a spouse or civil partner, or a person with whom you are living as husband or wife, or a person with whom you are living as if you are civil partners.
- 1. You must ensure that your register of interests is kept up-to-date and within 28 days of becoming aware of any new interest, or of any change to a registered interest, notify the Monitoring Officer.
- 2. A 'sensitive interest' is as an interest which, if disclosed, could lead to the Councillor, or a person connected with the Councillor, being subject to violence or intimidation.
- 3. Where you have a 'sensitive interest' you must notify the Monitoring Officer with the reasons why you believe it is a sensitive interest. If the Monitoring Officer agrees they will withhold the interest from the public register.

Non participation in case of disclosable pecuniary interest

4. Where a matter arises at a meeting which directly relates to one of your Disclosable Pecuniary Interests as set out in **Table 1**, you must disclose the interest, not participate in any discussion or vote on the matter and must not remain in the room unless you have been granted a dispensation. If it is a 'sensitive interest', you do not have to disclose the nature of the interest, just that you have an interest. You are able to make a brief statement prior to leaving the meeting to describe the context of your decision. Specific guidance regarding the declaration of interests at planning committee is available here:

https://www.local.gov.uk/publications/probity-planning-advice-councillors-and-officers-making-planning-decisions

E.M.M-14/09/23 18 of 21

Dispensation may be granted in limited circumstances, to enable you to participate and vote on a matter in which you have a disclosable pecuniary interest.

5. Where you are the Chairperson of any committee and have a disclosable pecuniary interest on a matter to be considered by you or you are being consulted upon for an officer decision, you must notify the Monitoring Officer of the interest and must not take any steps or further steps in the matter apart from arranging for the Vice Chairperson or someone else to deal with it

Disclosure of Other Registerable Interests

6. Where a matter arises at a meeting which *directly relates* to the financial interest or wellbeing of one of your Other Registerable Interests (as set out in **Table 2**), you must disclose the interest. You may speak on the matter only if members of the public are also allowed to speak at the meeting but otherwise must not take part in any discussion or vote on the matter and must not remain in the room unless you have been granted a dispensation. If it is a 'sensitive interest', you do not have to disclose the nature of the interest.

Disclosure of Non-Registerable Interests

- 7. Where a matter arises at a meeting which *directly relates* to your financial interest or well-being (and is not a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest set out in Table 1) or a financial interest or well-being of a relative or close associate, you must disclose the interest. You may speak on the matter only if members of the public are also allowed to speak at the meeting. Otherwise you must not take part in any discussion or vote on the matter and must not remain in the room unless you have been granted a dispensation. If it is a 'sensitive interest', you do not have to disclose the nature of the interest. You are able to make a brief statement prior to leaving the meeting to describe the context of your decision. Specific guidance regarding the declaration of interests at planning committee is available here: https://www.local.gov.uk/publications/probity-planning-advice-councillors-and-officers-making-planning-decisions
- 8. Where a matter arises at a meeting which affects
 - a. your own financial interest or well-being;
 - b. a; or
 - c. a financial interest or wellbeing of a body included under Other Registrable Interests as set out in **Table 2**

you must disclose the interest. In order to determine whether you can remain in the meeting after disclosing your interest the following test should be applied

- 9. Where a matter (referred to in paragraph 8 above) **affects** the financial interest or well-being:
 - a) to a greater extent than it affects the financial interests of the majority of inhabitants of the ward affected by the decision and;
 - b) a reasonable member of the public knowing all the facts would believe that it would affect your view of the wider public interest

You may speak on the matter only if members of the public are also allowed to speak at the meeting. Otherwise, you must not take part in any discussion or vote on the matter and must not remain in the room unless you have been granted a dispensation. You are able to make a brief statement prior to leaving the meeting to describe the context of your decision. Specific guidance regarding the declaration of interests at planning committee is available here:

E.M.M - 14/09/23 19 of 21

https://www.local.gov.uk/publications/probity-planning-advice-councillors-and-officers-making-planning-decisions

If it is a 'sensitive interest', you do not have to disclose the nature of the interest.

10. Where you are the Chairperson of any committee and have another Registrable Interest or Non-Registrable Interest on a matter to be considered by you or you are being consulted upon for an officer decision, you must notify the Monitoring Officer of the interest and must not take any steps or further steps in the matter apart from arranging for the Vice Chairperson or someone else to deal with it.

Table 1: Disclosable Pecuniary Interests

This table sets out the explanation of Disclosable Pecuniary Interests as set out in the Relevant Authorities (Disclosable Pecuniary Interests) Regulations 2012.

Any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on for profit or gain.

Sponsorship

Any payment or provision of any other financial benefit (other than from the council) made to the Councillor during the previous 12-month period for expenses incurred by him/her in carrying out his/her duties as a Councillor, or towards his/her election expenses.

This includes any payment or financial benefit from a trade union within the meaning of the Trade Union and Labour Relations (Consolidation) Act 1992. Contracts

Any contract made between the Councillor or his/her spouse or civil partner or the person with whom the Subject Description Employment, office, trade, profession or vocation Councillor is living as if they were spouses/civil partners (or a firm in which such person is a partner, or an incorporated body of which such person is a director* or a body that such person has a beneficial interest in the securities of*) and the council—

- (a) under which goods or services are to be provided or works are to be executed; and
- (b) which has not been fully discharged.

Land and Property - Any beneficial interest in land which is within the area of the council.

'Land' excludes an easement, servitude, interest or right in or over land which does not give the Councillor or his/her spouse or civil partner or the person with whom the Councillor is living as if they were spouses/ civil partners (alone or jointly with another) a right to occupy or to receive income.

<u>Licenses</u> - Any licence (alone or jointly with others) to occupy land in the area of the council for a month or longer.

Corporate tenancies - Any tenancy where (to the Member's knowledge)—

- (a) the landlord is the council; and
- (b) the tenant is a body that the Councillor, or his/her spouse or civil partner or the person with whom the Councillor is living as if they were spouses/ civil partners is a partner of or a director* of or has a beneficial interest in the securities* of.

E.M.M - 14/09/23 20 of 21

Securities - Any beneficial interest in securities* of a body where—

- (a) that body (to the Councillor's knowledge) has a place of business or land in the area of the council; and
- (b) either—
 - (i) the total nominal value of the securities* exceeds £25,000 or one hundredth of the total issued share capital of that body; or
 - (ii) if the share capital of that body is of more than one class, the total nominal value of the shares of any one class in which the Councillor, or his/ her spouse or civil partner or the person with whom the Councillor is living as if they were spouses/civil partners have a beneficial interest exceeds one hundredth of the total issued share capital of that class.
- 'director' includes a member of the committee of management of an industrial and provident society.
- 'securities' means shares, debentures, debenture stock, loan stock, bonds, units of a collective investment scheme within the meaning of the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000 and other securities of any description, other than money deposited with a building society.

Table 2: Other Registrable Interests

You must register as an Other Registerable Interest:

- a) any unpaid directorships
- b) any body of which you are a member or are in a position of general control or management and to which you are nominated or appointed by your authority
- c) any body
 - (i) exercising functions of a public nature
 - (ii) directed to charitable purposes or
 - (iii) one of whose principal purposes includes the influence of public opinion or policy (including any political party or trade union) of which you are a member or in a position of general control or management spouses/civil partners have a beneficial interest exceeds one hundredth of the total issued share capital of that class.

E.M.M - 14/09/23 21 of 21